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NOTICE

MILTON INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTICE is hereby given that the 39" Annual General Meeting of the members of
MILTON INDUSTRIES LIMITED (CIN: L20299GJ1985PLC008047) will be held on
Tuesday, 30" September, 2025 at 03.00 P.M. at % Chitra Ami Appartment, Opp La Gajjar
Chambers, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad-380009 Through E-Meeting , to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31°' March, 2025 and the Statement
of Profit and Loss Account for the period ended 31 March, 2025 and the Report of Directors and
Auditor thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vijay Pal Jain (DIN: 00343712), who retires by rotation
pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

3. Toappoint a Director in place of Mr. Vikas Jain (DIN: 00301277), who retires by rotation pursuant
to the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment

For Milton Industries Limited

Vijay Pal Jain
Date: - 08.09.2025 Chairman Cum Managing Director
Place: - Ahmedabad DIN: - 00343712

www.miltonindustries.com &2 /WWWWW
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NOTES:

1. MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING (THE “MEETING”) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT
APPOINTING THE PROXY, IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, MUST BE
DEPOSITED AT THE COMPANY’S REGISTERED OFFICE, DULY COMPLETED
AND SIGNED, NOT LESS THAN 48 (FORTY-EIGHT) HOURS BEFORE THE
MEETING.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING
FIFTY AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT
OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING
RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY
APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT
AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER.

2. Corporate members intending to send their Authorized Representatives to attend the Meeting
are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their
representatives to attend and vote on their behalfat the Meeting.

3. A member registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall not be entitled to
appoint any other person as his / her proxy unless such other person is also a member of the
Company.

4. Members are requested to bring their dully filled attendance slip along with their copy of
Annual Report at the Meeting.

5. Incase of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order
of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote.

6. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement are open for
inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days,
except Saturdays and Sundays, during business hours (10.00 a.m. to 05.00 p.m.) up to the date
of the Meeting.

7. Pursuant to the Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, Register of Members and Share
Transfer Book of the Company will be closed from 16th September, 2025 to 30th September,
2025.

8. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate all changes
pertaining to their bank details, National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS), Electronic
Clearing Service (ECS), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of address, change
of name, e-mail address, contact numbers, etc., to their Depository Participant (DP). Changes
intimated to the DP will then be automatically reflected in the Company’s records which will
help the Company and the Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, Big Share Services
Private Limited Private Limited, to provide efficient and better services. Members holding
shares in physical form are requested to intimate such changes to the Company or its Registrars
& Transfer Agents (RTA), Big Share Services Private Limited.

o
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9. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding
shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository
Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in
physical form can submit their PAN to the Company / Big Share Services Private Limited
(RTA).

10. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, members holding shares inphysical form
may file nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 and for cancellation/variation in nomination
in the prescribed Form SH-14 with the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent. In respect of
shares held in electronic/demat form, the nomination form may be filed with the respective
Depository Participant

11. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding
in the same order of names are requested to send the share certificates to Big Share Services
Private Limited, for consolidation into a single folio. The share certificates will be returned to
the members after making requisite changes thereon.

12. Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to inform Big Share Services Private Limited
immediately of:

a. Change in their residential status on return to India for permanentsettlement.

b. Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch,
account type, account number and address of the bank with pin code number, if not
furnished earlier.

13. To support the ‘Green Initiative’ members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so
far are requested to register their e-mail address with RTA /Depository Participants for
receiving all communication including annual report, notices, circulars, etc. from the company
electronically.

14. Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning accounts and operations of the
Company are requested to address their questions in writing to the Company at least 14 days
before the date of the Annual General Meeting so that the information required may be made
available at the Annual General Meeting.

15. The Company has connectivity from the CDSL & NSDL and Equity Shares of the Company
may also be held in the electronic form with any Depository Participant (DP) with whom the
members/investors are having their depository account. The ISIN No. for the Equity Shares of
the Company is INE376Y01016. In case of any query/difficulty in any matter relating thereto
may be addressed to the Registrars & Transfer Agents (RTA).

16. Trading in the shares of the Company is compulsorily in dematerialized form for all investors.
Dematerialization would facilitate paperless trading through state-of-the-art technology, quick
transfer of corporate benefits to members and avoid inherent problems of bad deliveries, loss
in postal transit, theft and mutilation of share certificate and will not attract any stamp duty.
Hence, we request all those members who have still not dematerialized their shares to get their
shares dematerialized at the earliest.

o -
www.miltonindustries.com g%
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17. The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent by electronic
mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the
Company/Depositories, unless any Member has requested for a physical copy of the same.
For Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses, physical copies are being sent
by the permitted mode.

18. Information relating to the Directors proposed to be appointed and those retiring by rotation
and seeking re-appointment at this Meeting, as required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is annexed to this
Notice.

19. In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the Act and the Rules framed there under,
the Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e-
voting services provided by CDSL, on all resolutions set forth in this Notice.

) How do I vote electronically using CDSL e-Voting system?

CDSL e-Voting System — For Remote e-voting and e-voting during AGM/EGM

1. As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the
general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular
No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. The
forthcoming AGM/EGM will thus be held through through video conferencing (VC) or other
audio-visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing
AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation
44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended),
and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13,2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is
providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted
at the AGM/EGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means,
as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote
e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by
CDSL.

3. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after
the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM
will be made available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not
include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters,
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on
account of first come first served basis.

Notice # www.miltonindustries.com ¢
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4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM will be counted
for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to
attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM/EGM. However, in
pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the
members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend
the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13,
2020, the Notice calling the AGM/EGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.miltonindustries.in. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at

www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively. The AGM/EGM Notice is also
disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and
e-voting system during the AGM/EGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com.

7. The AGM/EGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8,
2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020
dated May 05,2020.

THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

(i) The voting period begins at 9.00a.m. on Thursday, 25" September, 2025 and ends at 5.00 p.m.
on Monday, 29" September, 2025. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of
Friday 19" September, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be
disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(i)  Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at
the meeting venue.

(iii)  The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

(iv)  Click on “Shareholders” module.

Notice
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(v) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered
with the Company.

OR

Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, you can log-in at
https://www.cdslindia.com from Login - Myeasi using your login credentials. Once you
successfully log-in to CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and proceed
directly to cast your vote electronically.

(vi)  Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

(vii)  If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

(viii)  If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical
shareholders)

e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence
number which is printed on Postal Ballot / Attendance Slip /
communicated by mail indicated in the PAN field.

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format)as

Bank recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
Details

OR e [f both the details are not recorded with the depository or company
Date of please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details
Birth field as mentioned in instruction (v).
(DOB)

(ix)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(x)  Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection
screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password
Creation” menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the
new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for
voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that
company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share
your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

Notice # www.miltonindustries.com ¢
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(xi)  For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on
the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xii))  Click onthe EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

(xiii)  On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the
option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies
that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiv)  Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xv)  After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK?”, else to
change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi)  Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

(xvii))  You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the
Voting page.

(xviii)  If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the
system.

(xix)  Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting
app can be downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by
the mobile app while Remote Voting on your mobile.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN
CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS
NOTICE:

1. For Physical sharecholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16-digit beneficiary
ID or NSDL-16-digit DPID + CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account
statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned
copy of Aadhar Card) toCompany/RTA email id.

Notice
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM
THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

a. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through
VC/OAVM through the CDSL e-Voting system. Shareholders may access the same
at https://www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members login by using the
remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in
shareholder/members login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed.

b. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / iPad for better
experience.

c. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good
speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

d. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-
Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

e. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting
may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least
Fourteen days prior to meeting mentioning their name, Demat account number/folio
number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do not
wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance
Fourteen days prior to meeting mentioning their name, Demat account number/folio
number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be replied
to by the company suitably by email.

f. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed
to express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM/EGM
ARE AS UNDER: -

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions
mentioned above for Remote e-voting.

2. Only those shareholders, who are present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system
available during the EGM/AGM.

3. If any Votes are cast by the sharcholders through the e-voting available during the
EGM/AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through
VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such sharcholders shall be considered invalid
as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the sharcholders attending
the meeting.

4. Sharcholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be cligible to attend the
EGM/AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM.

o
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(xx) Note for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians
® Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates”
module.

* A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

e After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login
and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish
to vote on.

® The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

® A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have
issued in favor of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for
the scrutinizer to verify the same.

¢ Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the
email address viz; cs@miltonindustries.in (designated email address by company) , if they
have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the e-Voting
System, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual
available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact Mr. Nitin Kunder (022- 23058738 ) or Mr.
Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542).

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed
to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL,) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A
Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower
Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call
on 022-23058542/43.

e o
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Other Instructions: —

e The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share
capital of the company as on the cut-off date of 19" September, 2025.

e Mr. Himanshu Maheshwari, Proprietor, Company Secretaries (Membership No. ACS: 38047,
CP No. 144006) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the E-voting process in a
fair and transparent manner.

e The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the
votes cast at the AGM and thereafter unblock the votes cast through Remote E-voting in the
presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company. The Scrutinizer
shall make, not later than forty-eight (48) hours of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated
scrutinizer’s report, of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any to the Chairman of AGM
or any other person authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the same and declare
the result of the voting. The results declared along with Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed
on the Company’s website www.miltonindustries.in and on the website of NSDL immediately
after the result is declared.

By order of the Board

For Milton Industries Limited

Vijay Pal Jain

Date: - 08.09.2025 Chairman Cum Managing Director
Place: - Ahmedabad DIN: - 00343712

Notice 4 www.miltonindustries.com ¢
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members,

Milton Industries Limited
Ahmedabad.

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 39" Annual Report together with Audited Statement
of Accounts for the year ended 31% March, 2025.

FINANCIAL RESULTS: (Rs in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 2024-25 | 2023-24
Gross Sales 4417.44 | 8905.93
Net Sales 4417.44 | 8905.93
Profit before Interest, Depreciation & Tax 441.34 726.16
Interest and Financial Charges 169.26 188.23
Depreciation 116.68 108.64
Profit Before Tax 155.39 429.29
Less: Provision for Taxation:

Current Tax & FBT 46.50 111.46

Deferred Tax -7.00 -0.94

Short/Excess Provisions of Earlier Years -3.84

Mat Credit

Net Profit after Tax carried to Balance -sheet 119.74 318.77
FUTURE OUTLOOK:

Milton Industries is proud to share that we have successfully developed and delivered fully
furnished coaches to the Indian Railways.

The financial year has been particularly challenging due to several external factors, including the
General Elections, during which many railway coach orders were halted as fund allocations to
various ministries were delayed.

Despite these challenges, we are actively executing multiple furnishing projects, including:
Coaches for Modern Coach Factory
Coaches for RCNK Sonipat
Coaches for NF Railway Workshop, Dibrugarh
Upgradation of'toilets in LHB Coaches, Assam
Furnishing of Campaign Coaches in Bhavnagar
Looking ahead, we are committed to expanding our product offerings for the Indian Railways. To

achieve this, we are strategically sourcing from approved vendors for a wider range of components,
which will also strengthen the company's liquidity management.

Milton Industries continues to strive towards excellence and contribute meaningfully to the growth
and modernization of the Indian Railways.

e o
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DIVIDEND:

The board of directors has decided to plough back the profit to meet with capital expenditure and
to meet with working capital requirement; therefore, your Directors do not recommend any
dividend for the year under review.

BONUS:

The board of directors has decided to plough back the profit to meet with capital
expenditure and to meet with working capital requirement; therefore, your Directors do not
recommend any Bonus for the year under review.

RESERVES:

The company did not transfer any amount to General Reserves for Bonus and Dividend
distribution in the F.Y 2024-25.

PERFORMANCE:

Your Directors inform you that, during the year under review, the Company have Gross Sales of
Rs. 4417.44 Lacks as against Rs. 8905.93 Lacks in the previous year. During the year under
review the Company has earned net profit after tax amounting to Rs. 119.74 Lacks as against the
net profit after tax of Rs. 318.77 Lacks in the previous year. Your Directors are hopeful to
achieve better financial performance inthe coming years.

DEPOSITS:

The company has not accepted deposits from the public during the financial year under review
within the meaning of Section 73 of the Act of the Companies Act 2013, read with Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

www.miltonindustries.com = /
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees
of the Company, forms part of this report as ‘Annexure A’. However, as permitted in terms of
Section 136 of the Act, this Annual Report is being sent to all the members and others entitled
thereto, excluding the said annexure. Members who are interested in obtaining these particulars
may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company. The aforesaid
annexure is also available for inspection by members at the Registered Office of the Company,
21 days before the 39" Annual General Meeting and up to the date of Annual General Meeting
during business hours on working days.

FORMAL EVALUATION BY BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the Board shall carry out an annual performance
evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the
working of Audit and Nomination & Remuneration Committees based on the criteria and
framework adopted by the Board.

INDUSTRIAL RELATION:

Employee’s relations have remained cordial throughout the year. Your Directors place on record
their appreciation for significant contribution made by the employees through their Competence,

hard work, sustained efforts, Co-operation and support.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM:

The Company has placed an adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial
Statements. The Board has inter alia reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls relating to its financial statements. During the year no reportable
material weakness in the design or operation were observed.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:

Information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies
(Disclosures of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 2014, relating Conservation
of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo in is given in
“Annexure-B” forming part of this report.

e U
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The Company has formed various Committees as required under the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013 read with SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015.
The details of the committee are provided herein below:

Presently, the board has Three (3) committees i.e. Audit Committee, Nomination and

Remuneration Committees, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, constitution of which are
given below.

A. Audit Committee:

Name of the Director Status in Designation

Committee
Mr. Vaibhav Jain Chairman Non-Executive-independent director
Mr. Rakesh Mehtani Member Non-Executive-independent director
Mr. Vijay Pal Jain Member Managing Director

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committees:

Name of the Director Status in Designation

Committee
Mr. Vaibhav Jain Chairman Non-Executive-Independent Director
Mr. Rakesh Mehtani Member Non-Executive-Independent Director
Mr. Vijay Pal Jain Member Non-Executive-Independent Director

C. Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

Name of the Director Status in Committee Nature of Directorship

Mr. Vaibhav Jain Chairman Non-Executive-Independent Director
Mr. Rakesh Mehtani Member Non-Executive-Independent Director
Mr. Vijay Pal Jain Member Managing Director

VIGIL MACHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER:

During the year under review, the Company has established Vigil Mechanism. Accordingly, the
Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism Policy, to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors
and employees to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate
safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism. The policy for vigil
mechanism is available on the website of the company.
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SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES:

The company does not have any subsidiary, Joint venture and Associate.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

During the year under review, the company has in the ordinary course of its business and
complying with the provisions of section 186 of the companies Act, 2013 entered into transaction
relating to giving of loan or Guarantee. The members are requested to refer the notes to the
financial statement which are forms the part of the Annual Report for detailed information.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

There was no Contract or Arrangement made with Related Parties pursuant to section 188 of the
companies Act, 2013.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts/Tribunal which
would impact the going concern status of the Company and its operations in future.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF
FINANCIAL YEAR (MARCH 31, 2025) AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

The Company had initiated arbitration proceedings against Modern Coach Factory (MCF)
for recovery of outstanding dues. We are pleased to inform that the arbitration award has

been pronounced in favor of the Company, thereby validating our rightful claim.

The Company had initiated legal proceedings against ACME India (''the Debtor") before the
MSME Tribunal for recovery of outstanding dues. We are pleased to report that the Tribunal has
pronounced its decision in favour of the Company, and the award amount has since been duly
received. This favourable outcome has further strengthened the Company's liquidity position and

validates the steps taken by the management to safeguard the Company's financial interests.
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DECLARATIONS BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors of the Company
confirming that they meet the criteria of the Independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSEMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESAL) ACT, 2013:

There was no case filled during the year, under the sexual harassment of women at workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redresser) Act, 2013. Further Company ensures that there is a healthy
and safe atmosphere for every women employee at the workplace and made the necessary policies
for safe and secure environment for women employee.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The provision of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company as
company is not matching with the criteria specified in the said section.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company has a robust Risk Management policy. The Company through a Steering
Committee oversees the Risk Management process including risk identification, impact
assessment, effective implementation of the mitigation plans and risk reporting. At present the
company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the company.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS:

The details of the number of meetings of the Board held during the financial year 2024-25forms
part of the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government under Section
118(10) of the Act.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

An extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 as on March 31%, 2025 is attached as “Annexure-
C” to this Report.

o = - - p—
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

In accordance with Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Articles
of Association of the Company, Mr. Vijay Pal Jain (DIN: 00343712) Mr. Vikas Jain
(DIN: 00301277), retire by rotation and is being eligible offer himself for re-appointment at the

ensuing Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTOR RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of provisions of section 134 (5) of the companies Act, 2013 your Directors confirm: -

a) That in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31%, 2025 the
applicable Accounting Standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures.

b) That the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the Profit
of the Company for the year ended March 31%, 2025.

¢) That the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

d) That the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a “going concern” basis.

e) That the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS:

In compliance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V(B) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing
Regulations’), Management Discussion and Analysis forms an integral part of the Directors’
Report, is given in ‘Annexure-D’

e U
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

Audit Report is annexed to this Report as 'Annexure- E'. There is Disclaimer annexed in the
Auditor Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
Company has appointed Mr. Himanshu Maheshwari, Company Secretaries, to undertake the
Secretarial Audit functions of the Company. The Secretarial report in Point No. 4 sub (d)which

are self- explanatory and therefore do notrequire any further explanations.

AUDITORS REPORT:

M/s. KPSJ & Associates, LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Reg. No. 124845W) appointed
as the statutory auditors of your Company, hold office until the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting to be held in the year 2025. A certificate from M/s. KPSJ & Associates, LLP,
and Chartered Accountant has been received to the effect that their appointment, if made,
would be within the prescribed limits under Section 139 of the Companies Act,2013. The
Report ofthe Auditors read with the notes to accounts as annexed are self-explanatory and

therefore do not require any further explanations.

coes " . - o
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Board wishes to place on record its deep appreciation of Directors of your company for their
immense contribution by way of strategic guidance, sharing of knowledge, experience and
wisdom, which help your company take right decisions in achieving its business goals. Your Board
acknowledges with thanks the support given by Government Authorities suppliers, Bankers,
customers, Shareholders and Employees of the Company at all levels and looks forward for their
continued support.

Date: 08.09.2025 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
Place: Ahmedabad. M/S. MILTON INDUSTRIES LIMITED.

CHAIRMAN
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Annexure “B” to Directors Report

Information under section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of Directors Report for the year ended 31%
March, 2025.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

TO THE DIRECTORS” REPORT
PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION 2024-25 2023-24

1. | Electricity:

Units purchased (Nos) 675075 1122055
Amount (Rs.) 7292578 9949442
Average Rate (Rs. / Unit) 10.80 8.67

We continue to strengthen our energy conservation efforts. Inter alia the following steps have
been taken to reduce energy consumption:

e Use of energy efficient devices/motors for running of machineries.

e Standardization of utility pipelines leading to optimum utilization.
The process is ongoing and the Engineering team is working on various measures to conserve
this scarce resource.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

The company did not incur any costs for gaining access to this expertise and has not carried
out any Technology absorptionactivity.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

The Company’s Research and development Team continued its efforts in the area of
improvement of quality/process cycle/ product design.

We continue to focus on product and process improvement and collaborate with product
vendors to co-create business solutions on customer specific themes.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

Total foreign exchange earnings during the year were Rs.173.77 Lakh (Previous year
Rs. 365.59 Lakh). Total foreign exchange outgo during the year was Rs. 138.90 Lakh
(Previousyear Rs.342.86 Lakh).

Date: 08.09.2025 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
Place: Ahmedabad. M/S. MILTON INDUSTRIES LIMITED.
CHAIRMAN
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1. Company’s Philosophy

Corporate Governance pertains to systems, by which companies are directed and controlled,
keeping in mind long—term interest of stakeholders. It aims to align interest of company with its
stakeholders. The incentive for company and those who own and manage them to adopt global
governance standards help them to achieve a long-term sustainable partnership with its
stakeholders efficiently. The Company aims to achieve this through proper & full disclosure of
material facts and achievement of the highest level of transparency and accountability in all
aspects of its operations.

2. Board of Directors

The strength of the Board of Directors as on 31" March 2025 is Nine (09) out of which Three
(03) are Independent Directors. The composition of the Board of Directors is in conformity
with the Corporate Governance Code.

None of the Directors is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5
Committees (as specified in regulation 26 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015), across all the
companies in which he/she is a Director.

Board Meetings held during the year:

The Company has been following the practice of at least four Board meetings every year.
During the Financial Year Eight Board Meetings were held on the following dates: 05"April,
2024, 29" May, 2024, 06" September, 2024, 30" September, 2024, 14" November, 2024, 30"
November, 2024,24" December, 2024, 28"February, 2025, 16" March, 2025.

Attendance of Directors atthe Board Meetings and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM)

Name of Director No. of Board Meetings Attended Last AGM
Held Attended

Sri. Vijay pal Jain 9 9 Yes
Sri Saket Jain 9 9 Yes
Smt Neha Jain 9 1 No
Sri Vikas Jain 9 7 Yes
Sri Abhay Jain 9 4 Yes
Sri Ajay Jain 9 6 No
Sri Maheshbhai Patel 9 1 No
Sri Rakesh Mehtani 9 5 Yes
Sri Vaibhav Jain 9 9 Yes
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Composition of the Board of Directors, their Directorship in other Companies and Committee
Membership in the Company as on 31 March, 2025 as follows

No. of other Directorship and Committee No. of
Name of Category Membership/Chairmanship Shares held
Director Other Committee Committee
Directorship Membership Chairmanship
Sri. Vijaypal Promoter /
Jain Executive 3 - - 8991384
Director
Promoter /
Sri Vikas Jain | Executive 1 - - 1145118"
Director
Promoter /
Sri Saket Jain Executive 3 - - 5120254
Director
Promoter /
Sri Abhay Jain | Executive 4 - - 818158"
Director
Promoter /Non
Sri Ajay Jain Executive 3 - - 8892427
Director
Promoter /
Smt Neha Jain | Executive 0 - - 247846
Director
Sri. Rakesh | Non-Executive 1
Mehtani & Independent ) )
Sri Non-Executive
Maheshbhai & Independent 0 i i
Patel
Sri Vaibhav | Non-Executive 0 - ;
Jain & Independent

Note: » Number of shares held as individual

CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER-TRADING PRACTICES

As per the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015, the Company Secretary is the
Compliance Officer and is responsible for setting forth policies, procedures, monitoring
adherence to the rules for the preservation of price-sensitive information, pre-clearance of trade,
monitoring of trades and implementation of the Code of Conduct for trading in Company’s
securities under the overall supervision of the Board. The Company has adopted a Code of
Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading as well as a Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices
in accordance with Regulation 4(2)(c) of Listing Regulations. All the Directors on the Board,
Senior Management at all locations and other employees who could be privy to unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company are governed by this Code.
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CODE OF CONDUCT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

As per the provisions of Section 149(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, the company and
independent directors shall abide by the provisions specified in Schedule IV. Further, Schedule
IV lays down a code for Independent Directors of the Company. Pursuant to the said provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has drafted a Code for Independent Directors of the
Company which forms part of the Letter of Appointment of Independent Director and the Letter
of Appointment of Independent Director has been placed in the website of the company.

Audit Committee

The role & terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as per Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with
The NSE Limited.

The role of the Audit Committee shall include the following:

1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of
the Company;

3. Reviewing, with the management the annual financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be
included in Board’s Report in terms of clause(c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management.

. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial
statements.

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions.

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report.

4. Reviewing, with the management the quarterly financial statements before submission to
the Board for approval;

5. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of
audit process;

6. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of transactions of the Company
with related parties;

7. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

[ ) X ) . - : oo
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Valuations of undertakings or assets of the Company wherever it is necessary;
Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors,
adequacy of the internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a

material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences about the nature and
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism;

Approval of appointment of CFO after assessing the qualifications, experience,
background, etc. of the candidate;

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee.

During the financial year ended 31.03.2025 the Committee met Four times under review on
30" May, 2024, 06"September, 2024, 14" November, 2024, 04™ March, 2025. The attendances of
the members were as follows:

SI. Name of the Members | Category Designation No. of Meetings
No. attended
1 Sri Vaibhav Jain Independent Chairman 4
5 Sri Vijay pal Jain Managing Member 4
Director
4 Sri Rakesh Mehtani Independent Member 2

The Chief Financial Officer and representatives of the Statutory Auditors are permanent invitees
to the Audit Committee Meetings.
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall act in accordance with the prescribed
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and shall be responsible for:

i)  Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors,
key managerial personnel and other employees;

i) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board,

iii) Devising a policy on Board diversity;

iv) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down recommend to the Board their appointment
and removal and carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

During the year, 2 meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the

Company was held i.e. on 27"Aug 2024,23"March, 2025. The Composition and attendance
of Directors at these meetings are as under:

SI. Name of the Members | Category Designation No. of Meetings
No. attended
1 Sri Maheshbhai Patel Non-Executive & | Chairman 1
Independent
2 Sri Rakesh Mehtani Non-Executive & | Member 1
Independent
5 Sri Vaibhav Jain Non-Executive & | Member 2
Independent

Remuneration Policy:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, the Board of Directors of the
Company based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
formulated a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors and Key Managerial Personnel.
The details of which forms part of the Directors’ Report.

Details of remuneration paid/payable to the Directors during the financial year ended 31% March,
2025.

Remuneration was paid to following of the Directors during the financial year ended 31" March,
2025. The Managing Director, Sri Vijaipal Jain, received Rs. 24,00,0000/-, the Whole time
Director, Sri Vikas Jain, received Rs. 24,00,000/-, and the Whole time Director, Sri Abhay Jain,
received Rs. 24,00,000/- as his remuneration for the financial year.

.. NI
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Stakeholders Relationship Committee / Investor Grievance Committee:

During the year 2 meetings of the Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committee were held
on 18"July, 2024 and 24" January, 2025. The Composition and attendances of Directors at these
meetings are as under:

SL Name of the Category Designation No. of Meetings

No. | Members attended

1 Sri Vaibhav Jain Executive, Non- [ Chairman 1
Independent

2 Sri Rakesh Mehtani Non-Executive, Member 2
Independent

3. Sri Vijay Pal Jain Non-Executive, Chairman 2
Independent

No Complaints have been received from the Shareholders during the year as per the report of the
Registrar and Transfer Agents (Investor and Grievance Report) viz. Big share Services Pvt. Ltd.

Independent Directors’ Meeting

During the year under review the Independent Directors met on 25™ March, 2025 inter-alia to
discuss:

1. Evaluation of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors
as a whole.

2. Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the
views of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

3. Evaluation of the quality, content and timeliness flow of information between the

Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably
perform its duties.

The composition and attendances of Directors at this meeting is as under:

Name No. of meetings attended
Sri Rakesh Mehtani 1
Sri Maheshbhai Patel 0
Sri Vaibhav Jain 1

* Sri Vaibhav Jain was unanimously elected as the Chairman of the meetings.
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For Correspondence for Share Transfer and Related Matters

1. Milton Industries Limited 2. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
Secretarial Dept. Big share Services Pvt. Ltd.
Ya Chitra Ami, appt. A-802, Samudra Complex, off. C.G. Road,
Opp. La-Gajjar Chambers, Nr. Girish Cold Drinks, Navrangpura,
Ashram Road, Ahmedabad-380009 Ahmedabad-380009
Email Id — sil@bmd.net.in Email Id- bssahd2@bigshareonline.com

General Shareholder information

AGM:

Date 30™ Day of September, 2025

Time 03.00 p.m.

Venue %, Chitra Ami Appartment, Opp, La Gazzar Chambers,
Ashram Road, Ahmedabad-380009 Through E- Meeting

Financial Year April 2024 to March 2025

Financial Calendar Financial Reporting For Tentative Time Period
Quarter ending 30" September, | On or  before
2025 November 14, 2025
Quarter ending 31st March, [ On or before May 30,
2026 2026

Date of Book Closure Not Applicable

Listing on Stock Exchanges The NSE limited
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Bandra - Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400051

Stock Code / Symbol Scrip Code: MILTON

Demat ISIN  Numbers in NSDL for | ISIN No.: INE 376Y01016

EquityShares

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents Big share Services Pvt. Ltd., A -802, Samudra Complex,
off. C.G. Road, Girish Cold Drinks,Navrangpura,
Ahmedabad-380009
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Share Transfer System 100% of the equity shares of the Company are in
electronic mode. Transfer of these shares is done through
depositories

Share Transfers are registered and returned within a period
of 30 days from the date of receipt, if the documents are
proper in all respects. As per directives issued by SEBI, it
is compulsory to trade in the Company’s equity shares in

dematerialized form. The Company offers the facility of
transfercum

dematerialization to its shareholders.

Address for correspondence Y Chitra Ami, appt., Opp. La-Gajjar Chambers, Ashram
Road, Ahmedabad-380009

Date: 08.09.2025 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
Place: Ahmedabad. M/S. MILTON INDUSTRIES LIMITED.

CHAIRMAN
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Code of Conduct

The Company is consistently endeavoring to conduct its business in accordance with the highest
standards of business ethics and complying with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The
Company believes that a good corporate governance structure would not only encourage value
creation but also provide accountability and control systems commensurate with the risks
involved. The Board of Directors has adopted the Code of Conduct for the Directors and Senior
Management (“the Code”).

A copy of the Code has been put on the Company’s website miltonindustries.in The Code has
been circulated to all the members of the Board and Senior Management and the compliance of
the same has been affirmed by them. A declaration signed by the Managing Director is given
below.

“I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior
Management, affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for Directors and
Senior Management in respect of financial year 2024-25.”

Date: 08.09.2025 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
Place: Ahmedabad. M/S. MILTON INDUSTRIES LIMITED.

CHAIRMAN
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CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO)

I, Saket Jain, Chief Financial Officer of Milton Industries Limited certify that:

a) We have reviewed the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended
31% March, 2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i. The statements do not contain materially untrue statement, or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

ii. The statements present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance
with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transaction entered into by the Company
during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

¢) We accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and Audit
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we
are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d) We have indicated to the Auditors and Audit Committee:

a. Significant changes in the internal controls over financial reporting during the year;

b. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have
been disclosed notes to the financial statements and

c. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a
significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Date: 08.09.2025 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
Place: Ahmedabad. M/S. MILTON INDUSTRIES LIMITED.
SAKET JAIN

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

> Directors’ Report W/ W’/WW
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Annexure “C” to Directors Report

FORM NO. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31% March, 2025

|Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

1. | CIN L20299GJ1985PLC008047

2. | Registration Date 23/08/1985

3. | Name of the Company MILTON INDUSTRIES LIMITED

4. | a) | Category of the Company Public Ltd. (Company Limited by Shares)
b) | Sub-Category of the Company Indian Non-Government Company

5. | Address of the Registered office of the Company & | "2 Chitra-Ami Appartment, Opp. La-Gajjar
Contact Details Chamber, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad —

380009.

Email : ac@miltonindustries.in

6. | Whether listed company Yes

7. | Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and | Big  share  Services Private Limited
Transfer Agent, if any Address:1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building,
Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol,
Andheri East, Mumbai- 400059, Maharashtra.
Contact: +91-22-62638200

I1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be

stated: -
Sr. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
No products/services Product/service the company
1. | Laminate Sheets 22209 7.21
2. | Coated Fabrics/GFRE 22209 92.79

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: -

The company does not have any subsidiary, Joint venture and Associate.

coorooo
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN
(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end of the year [%Cha
Shareholders beginning of the year nge
Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical [ Total % of [during
Total Total | the
Shares Shar | Year
es

A. PROMOTERS
(1) Indian

a | Individual/HUF 4263662 19 4263681 25.09 | 4263662 19 4263681 25.0910.00

b | Central Govt. - - - - - - - - B
State Govt. (s) - - - - - - - - -

d | Bodies 74 - 74 0.00 74 - 74 0.00 | 0.00
Corporate

¢ | Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -
f | Any Other...
(1) Director 8135960 - 8135960 47.87 | 8135960 - 8135960 | 47.87 |0.00
Relative
Sub-total (A) (1): - 12399696 19 12399715 72.96 | 12399696 19 12399715 | 72.96 | 0.00
(2) Foreign
a [ NRIs - - - - - -
Individuals

b | Other — - - - - - - - - -
Individuals

¢ | Bodies - - - - - - - - -
Corporate
d | Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

e | Any Other.... - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (A) (2): - - - - - - - - -
Total shareholding 12399696 19 12399715 | 72.96 | 12399696 19 12399715 72.96 | 0.54
of Promoters (A) =
@@ +A)Q@)

B. PUBLI C SHAREHOLDING
(1) Institutions
a | Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -

b | Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -

d | State Govt (s) - - - - - - - - -

e | Venture Capital - - - - - - - - N
Funds
f | Insurance - - - - - - - - -
Companies
g | FlIs - - - - - - R R R

h | Foreign Venture - - - - - - - - -
Capital Funds

I | Others (specify)
Public - - - - 44000 - 44000 0.26 | 0.26
NRI
Sub-Total (B)(1): - - - - - - - - -

www.miltonindustries.com _#
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2.Non -Institutions

a) Bodies Corporate
a | Indian 30800 - 30800 0.18 48400 | 48400 0.28 | 0.11

b | Overseas

b) Individuals
a | Individual 1051600 - 1051600 6.19 976800 - 976800 5.75 | (0.44)
shareholders
holding

nominal share
capital up to Rs.2
Lacs

b | Individual 2868800 76485 2945285 17.33 2855600 76485 2932085 | 17.25 (0.08)
sharcholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 2

Lacs
¢) Others
(specify)
Public 550000 - 550000 3.24 528000 |- 528000 3.11 0.13
NRI 17600 17600 .10 66000 |- 66000 .39 29
Sub-total (B)(2): - | 4518800 76485 4595285 27.04 4474800 76485 4551285 26.78 (0.25)
Total Public 44518800 76485 4595285 27.04 4518800 76485 4595285 27.04 | (0.01)
Shareholding(B) =
B +(B)(2)
C. SHARES HELD BY CUSTODIAN FOR GDRS & ADRS: NIL
Grand Total 16918496 76504 16995000 | 100.00 16918496 76504 16995000 | 100.0 0.00
(A+B+C)

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. No. | Shareholder’s Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end of the %
Name beginning of the year year change
No.of | % oftotal | % of No. of % of % of in
Shares | Shares of | Shares | Shares total Shares [Shareho
the company| Pledged Shares of |Pledged | lding
/encumb the /encumb| during
ered company | ered |theyear
to total to total
shares shares
| Vijay pal Jain 899138 529 - | 899138 529 - 0.00
2 Ajay Jain 889242 5.23 - | 889242 5.23 - 0.00
3 Abhay Jain 818158 481 - | 818158 481 - 0.00
4 Vikas Jain 1145118 6.74 - | 1145118 6.74 - 0.00
5 Saket Jain 512025 3.01 - | 512025 3.01 - 0.00
TOTAL 4263681 25.00 - 14263681 25.00 -

e
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(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sr. Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding during the
No. of the year end of the year
No. of shares % of total shares No. of % of total
of the company shares shares of the
company
1 | At the beginning of the year 4263681 25.00 | 4263681 25.00

2 | Date wise Increase / Decrease
in Promoters Shareholding
during the year specifying the
reasons for increase/ decrease | REASON FOR INCREASE IN SHAREHOLDING: NO CHANGE

(e.g. allotment/ transfer
/bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

3 | Atthe End of the year (Total) 4263681 25.00 | 4263681 25.00

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of

GDRs and ADRs):
Sr. Name of Shareholders Cumulative Shareholding
No. during the year
No. of shares %o of total shares
of the company

1. DHEERAJ KUMAR LOHIA 290400 1.71

2 TEJAS VIRENDRA SHAH 281600 1.66

3. MANAV JAIN 264000 1.55

4. BHAUMIK RAJENDRA SANGHVI 189200 1.11

5 GAURAYV SINGHI 171600 1.00

6. SAVITRIDEVI KASHIRAM AGRAWAL 189200 1.11

7. KHUSHBU BHAUMIK SANGHVI 154000 0.91

8. RICHA RAJESHKUMAR AGRAWAL 145200 0.85

9. RAJESH K AGRAWAL HUF 127600 0.75

10. KHYATI PRAGNESH JASANI 105600 0.62

= Directors' Report
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: -

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year During the year
For each of the Directors No. of shares % of total No. of % of total
and KMP shares of the shares shares of the
company company

At the beginning of the year
(Name of Director)
1) Vijay Pal Jain 899138 5.29 899138 5.29
2) Ajay Mahipalsingh Jain 889242 5.23 889242 5.23
3) Abhay kumar Mahipalsingh Jain 818158 4.81 818158 4.81
4) Vikas Jain 1145118 6.74 1145118 6.74
5) Saket Jain 512025 3.01 512025 3.01
6) Neha Vinit Jain 247846 1.46 247846 1.46

2. | Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding
during the year specifying the
reasons fo r increase/ decrease ( e.g. REASON FOR INCREASE IN SHAREHOLDING: NO
allotment/ transfer /bonus/ sweat CHANGE
equity etc.):

3. | Atthe End of the year (Total) 4511527 | 26.55 | 4511527 | 26.55

Note: Shareholding of Promoters in different categories is merged as per PAN database
provided by RTA.

V. INDEBTEDNESS:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
A [ Principal Amount 13,41,26,514 1,68,04,289 - 15,09,30,803
B | Interest due but not paid _ 12,42,418 - 12,42,418
C | Interest accrued but not due 1,15,482 0 - 1,15,482
Total (i+iiHii) 13,42,41,996 1,80,46,707 - 15,22,88,703
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
A | Addition 6.91.65.582 - - 6,91,65,582
B [ Reduction (1,32,11,982) (50,81,719) - (1,82,93,701)
Net Change 19,01,95,596 (50,81,719) B 5,08,71,881
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
A | Principal Amount 19,01,95,596 1,29,64,988 - 20,31,60,584
B | Interest due but not paid 0 10,09,452 - 10,09,452
C | Interest accrued but not due 96,099 0 - 96,099
Total (i-+ii-+iii) 19,02,91,695 1,39,74,440 . 20,42,66,135

e e
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sr. Particulars of Remuneration Name of WTD Total Amount
No. (in Rs.)
Vijaypal | Abhay Vikas
Jain Jain Jain
1. Gross Salary 2400000 | 2400000 | 2400000 7200000
a. Salary as per provisions ¢ ontained in section - - - Nil

17(1) of the Income -tax Act, 1961

b. Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income - tax - - - Nil
Act, 1961

c. Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) - - - Nil
Income tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option - - - Nil

3. Sweat Equity - - - Nil

4. Commission - - - Nil

- as % of profit - - -

- Others, specify... - - -

5. Others, please specify - - - Nil

Total (A) 2400000 | 2400000 | 2400000 7200000

Over all Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to Directors (Other than MD/WTD) and/or Manager):

Sr. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
No. (in Rs.)
1. Independent Directors:

e Fee for attending Board/ - -
committee meetings
e Commission - -

e Others, please - -
specify (Remuneration)

Total (1) - -
2. Other Non-Executive Directors - -

e Fee for attending Board - -
/committee meetings

Commission - -
® Others, please specify AJAY MAHIPALSINGH JAIN 24,00,000/-
(Remuneration)
Total (2) - -
Total (B)= (1+2) - 24,00,000/-

Total Managerial Remuneration - -
Overall ceiling as per the Act [ -

¥ www.miltonindustries.com & =
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C. Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD:

INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sr. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No. Company CFO Total (in Rs.)
Secretary
Ronak Saket Jain
Maheshwari*
1. | Gross Salary 3,88,116/- | 24,00,000/- | 28,80,0000/ -
a. | Salary as per provisions contained in section N.A. N.A.
17(1) of the Income -tax Act, 1961
b. | Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income -tax Act, N.A. N.A.
1961
c. | Profits in lieu of s alary under section 17(3) N.A. N.A.
Income tax Act, 1961
2. | Stock Option N.A. N.A.
Sweat Equity N.A. N.A.
Commission N.A. N.A.
- as % of profit N.A. N.A.
- others, specify N.A. N.A.
5. | Others, please specify N.A. N.A.
Total 3,88,116/ - | 24,00,000/ - 28,80,000/ -
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: -
Sr. Type Section of | Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
No. the Description Penalty / [RD / NCLT/ | if any
Companies Punishment/ COURT] (give details)
Act Compounding
fees imposed
A COMPANY
a. Penalty Nil
b. Punishment Nil
c. Compounding Nil
B. | DIRECTORS
a. Penalty Nil
b. Punishment Nil
c. Compounding Nil
C. | OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULTS
a. Penalty Nil
b. Punishment Nil
c. Compounding Nil

Date: 08.09.2025
Place: Ahmedabad.

www.miltonindustries.com g™

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
M/S. MILTON INDUSTRIES LIMITED.

CHAIRMAN
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ANNEXURE-D

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

1. Industry Structure and Developments

The Indian laminates industry forms a vital part of the decorative surface materials market, catering
to residential, commercial, institutional, and industrial segments. Over the years, the sector has
witnessed consistent growth driven by rising urbanization, increasing disposable incomes, lifestyle
changes, and demand for modern interiors.

With real estate and infrastructure development gaining momentum, the laminates sector is
evolving towards innovation-led growth. Key developments include:

¢ Introduction of high-pressure laminates (HPL) with enhanced durability.
e Focusoneco-friendly and recyclable laminates due to environmental concerns.
¢ Increasing adoption of digital printing technologies for design variety.
e Growingexport potential, especially to Asia-Pacific, Middle East, and Europe.
2. Opportunities and Threats
Opportunities:
e Growing housing demand under government initiatives like Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana.
¢ Rising demand for modular furniture and modern office interiors.
e Expanding export opportunities for premium laminates.
e Shifttowards green building materials and sustainable products.
Threats:
e Volatility in raw material prices such as paper, resins, and chemicals.
e Intense competition from both organized and unorganized players.
e Fluctuations in global trade policies and currency exchange.
e Substitutes such as paints, coatings, and other decorative materials.
3.SegmentWise or ProductWise Performance

The Company operates primarily in the laminates segment, offering decorative laminates,
industrial laminates, and compact laminates. Demand was driven by both domestic retail
consumers and institutional buyers. The Company has also diversified into exports, contributing
significantly to overall revenue.

4. Outlook

The outlook for the laminates industry remains positive, with the sector expected to grow at a
CAGR of 810% over the next 5 years. Government spending on smart cities, commercial spaces,
and housing, along with growing consumer preference for stylish and durable interiors, will further
fuel demand. The Company is committed to introducing innovative, value-added products while
enhancing its distribution network in domestic and overseas markets.

e Sustainability Efforts: We are committed to reducing our carbon footprint and have
implemented [specific initiatives, e.g., energy-efficient production processes, waste
reduction programs].

www.miltonindustries.com
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5. Risks and Concerns

The Company is exposed to risks related to raw material price volatility, global economic
slowdown, and increasing competition. However, strategic sourcing, hedging practices, and
continuous product innovation are being implemented to mitigate these risks.

6. Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy

The Company has established robust internal control systems aligned with its size and operations.
These systems ensure proper recording of financial transactions, compliance with statutory
requirements, safeguarding of assets, and adherence to company policies. Regular audits are
conducted by the internal auditors and findings are reviewed by the Audit Committee.

7. Financial Performance vis-a-vis Operational Performance

During the year under review, the Company achieved steady revenue growth supported by strong
domestic demand and improved export performance. Operational efficiency, prudent cost
management, and focus on premium product categories contributed to profitability.

8. Human Resource Development and Industrial Relations

The Company considers human resources as its most valuable asset. Regular training, skill
upgradation programs, and employee welfare initiatives are undertaken. Industrial relations
during the year remained cordial.

9. Cautionary Statement

Statements in this report relating to objectives, projections, estimates, and expectations may
constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations.
Actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied due to various economic,
political, and industry-specific factors.

For and on behalf of the Board
Milton Industries Limited

Vijay Pal Jain
Chairman cum Managing Director
(DIN:00343712)

Management Discussion & Analysis
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule
No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel)
Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025

To,
The Members,
MILTON INDUSTRIES LIMITED

I/We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Milton Industries Limited. (hereinafter called the
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me/us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my Opinion thereon. Based
on my/our verification of the Milton Industries Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,
I/We hereby report that in my/our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31st March 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I/we have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Milton Industries Limited for the financial year ended on, 31st March 2025
according to the provisions of:

1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

1) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules made there
under;

iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under:

iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial borrowings

V) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') :-
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a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; - N.A.

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

c¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;- N.A.

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;- N.A.

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;- N.A.

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; and - N.A.

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998;-N.A.

1)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014:-N.A.

j)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and
Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013 :- N.A.

k) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Securitized Debt
Instruments and Security Receipts) Regulations,2008:- N.A.

1) SEBI (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices relating to Securities
Market) Regulations, 2003:- N.A.

m) SEBI(Issue of Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2002:- N.A.
n) SEBI(Depositories and Participant) Regulations,2018, as amended from time to time;

o) SEBI (Investor Protection and Education Fund) Regulations, 2009;- N.A.
I/we have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

1)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the
following observations:

[ ) . @ .
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(@)  The Company has generally complied with all the material provisions of the above
applicable Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, except one stated
below.

(b) The Company has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above
Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder insofar as it appears from my

examination of those records.

(¢)  The Company has prima facie complied with and included the conditions as mentioned
in Para 6(A) and 6(B) of the SEBI circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019, dated October
18,2019 in the terms of appointment of statutory auditor of the Company.

(d)  According to Company officials, Form MSME-1 is not applicable and not filed with
Registrar of Companies.

(e)  Company has not provided Statutory Books & Registers so we can't comment on
maintenance of same.

()  Company does not provided any document related to appointment or change of internal
auditor and also not provided any internal audit report so we can't comment on
existence of internal auditor in company this is clear violation of Section 138 of The
Companies Act 2013 and their rules.

I/we further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the

provisions of the Act.
Signature:
Place: Ahmedabad Himanshu Maheshwari
Date: 07/09/2025 Membership No. :A38047
C P No. : 14406

UDIN : A038047G001197128

www.miltonindustries.com = /
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Annexure- “A”

To,
The Members
Milton Industries Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our
audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability
of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Date : 06.09.2025 Himanshu Maheshwari)
Place: Ahmedabad (Proprietor)

(M. Mo. 38047)
(COP No. 14406)

. - - - .
www.miltonindustries.com g%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To,

The Members of,

Milton Industries Limited

(CIN: L20299GJ1985PLC008047)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Milton Industries Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the statement of Profit and Loss, and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information In our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and profit and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the other Key matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

FF Auditor’s Report WW’/\X'@/}VW
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw the attention to the Note No: 15 of financial statements of the company that the company
has provided short term loans and advances during the year to the various parties including creditors
as per terms and conditions mutually decided between them.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Information other than the financial statements and auditors' report thereon

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board's

Report including Annexure to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with
our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially mis
stated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors
is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in

(i) Planningthe scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(i1) toevaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance withal statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Our reportis not modified in respect of these matters.
Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the Annexure "A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as itappears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure B";

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of
the Act; and
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(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  Exceptdisputed tax liabilities mentioned in Annexure A point (vii) (c), the Company does
not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses, and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief that, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) Themanagement has represented, that, to the best of'its knowledge and belief that, no
funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

¢) Basedonsuch audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under
(a)and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

v. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of accounts for the financial year ended March 31,
2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. However, the same has
not operated throughout the year for all the relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further during the course of our audit we could not establish the systematic and
chronological order of transactions recorded during the year.

vi. The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year, hence compliance with
section 123 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

For KPSJ&ASSOCIATES LLP
(Chartered Accountants)
FRN: 124845W/W100209

Sd/-

PRAKASH CHANDRA PARAKH
Partner

M.NO: 039946

UDIN : 25039946BMIFBE4930
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: May 30", 2025
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report (Contd.)

(Referred to paragraph under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of MILTON
INDUSTRIES LIMITED on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal
course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

i In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible assets:

(a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right -of-use. (B) The
company has no intangible assets present for the period under review;

(b) The company has a regular programme for physical verification in a phased periodic manner,
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regards to the size of the company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verifications.

(c) According to information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds/lease deeds of
immovable Properties included in Property, Plant and equipment are held in the name of company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the record s of the Company, the Company has notre  -valued its Property, plant and equipment
(including Right-of-use assets).

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made there-under.

ii. (a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals during the year by the
management and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Co mpany has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets and moveable
and immoveable properties. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made investments, provided any guarantee or
security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. The
Company has granted loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties
during the year, details of the loan is stated in sub-clause (a) below.
(a) A. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries for the period under review.
B. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has granted loans to parties other than subsidiaries more specifically
mentioned in the financial statements of the company.

(b) According to the information and explan ations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that short term loans and advances given during the year as
per terms and conditions mutually decided between them.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, the repayment of principal and payment of
interest has not been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have not been regular.
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(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, we were not able to ascertain that whether there was any amount
which was overdue for more than ninety days or not in respect of loans given.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, we were not able to ascertain that whether  there was any amount
which was overdue for more than ninety days or not in respect of loans given.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no loan given falling due during the year, which has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the over - dues of existing loans given to the

same party.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has given loans repayable on demand as mutually decided
between the company and the various parties including creditors.

iv. | In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, in respect of loans,
investments, guarantees and security, the Company has complied with the provisions of sections 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013. However, the company has not complied with the provisions of Section 185
of Companies Act, 2013

V. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
accepted any deposits and accordingly paragraph 3 (v) of the order is not applicable.

vi. | In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the provisions of section 148
of the companies act, 2013 is not applicable to the company for the period  under review, accordingly
paragraph 3 (vi) of the order is not applicable.

vil. | Inrespect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income -tax,
sales- tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited during the year
by the company with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, goods
and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at Ma rch 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable,

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, there are no dues of income -tax, sales- tax, service tax, goods and service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise and value added ta x which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute except followings;
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Statute Nature of Amount Period to which
Dues (In Rupees) the amount
related
Income tax Act,1961 Income Tax 2,90,321 2007
Income tax Act,1961 Income Tax 16,230 2010
Income tax Act,1961 Income Tax 28,760 2014
Income tax Act,1961 Income Tax 7,13,410 2018
Income tax Act,1961 Income Tax 2,27,670 2019
Income tax Act,1961 Income Tax 9,060,671 2003
Income tax Act,1961 Income Tax 44 434 2004
Income tax Act,1961 Income Tax 1,53,345 2009
Income tax Act,1961 Income Tax 1,71,298 2008
Income tax Act,1961 Income Tax 10,00,932 1991
Income tax Act,1961 Income Tax 15,56,225 1998
Income tax Act,1961 Income Tax 1,97,178 2001
Income tax Act,1961 Income Tax 3,06,980 2021

viii | According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.

ix. | According to information and explanation given to us,

(a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender;

(c) The company has accepted term loans for the period under review and has applied the same for the
purpose for which it was borrowed,;

(d) The company has not raised funds on short term basis which have been utilized for long term
purposes.

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

X. (2) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not
applicable.

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible

debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the order is not applicable.
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xi. | (a) According to the information available with us, no fraud by the company and no fraud on the
company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) According to the information available with us, no report under sub - section (12) of section 143 of
the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government; during the year and up to
the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the mana gement, there were no whistle -blower complaints received during
the year and hence reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the order is not applicable.

xii. | The Company is not a Nidhi Company has complied and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the order
is not applicable.

xiii. | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with
related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards. However, the company has not
filed E-Form MGT-14 with Registrar of Companies for approval of related parties’ transactions.

xiv. | (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business;

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of th e Company issued till date for the period under
audit.

xv. | According to the information given to us, the company has not entered into any non - cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him Hence, the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act
are not applicable to the company.

xvi. | (a) According to the information given to us, the company is not required to be registered under section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Hence reporting under this clause not
applicable to the company.

(b) According to the information given to us, the company has not conducted any Non - Banking
Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the
Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence reporting under this clause
not applicable to the company.

(c) According to the information given to us, the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as
defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence reporting under this clause not
applicable to the company.

(d) According to the information given to us, there is no Core Investment Company (CIC) within the
Group (as defined in the core investment companies (Reserve Bank of India) Directions, 2016) and
accordingly reporting under this clause not applicable to the company.

xvil. | According to the information given to us, the Company has not incurred cash losses during the
financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.
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xviii. | There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

xix. | On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the board of directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that indicating that company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when
they fall due.

xx. | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount
under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project. Accordingly,
clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

xxi. | The company is not required to prepare Consolidated financial statements under Section 129 of
Companies Act, 2013.

For: KPSJ&ASSOCIATES LLP
(Chartered Accountants)
FRN: 124845W/W100209

PRAKASHCHANDRA PARAKH
Partner

ML.NO: 039946

UDIN: 25039946BMIFBE4930
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: May 30", 2025
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Annexure "B" to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements'
section of our report to the Members of MILTON INDUSTRIES LIMITED of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (I) of
sub - section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("'the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Milton Industries Limited
("the Company") as at March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's responsibility for internal financial controls

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of'its business, the safeguarding of'its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
ofthe Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed under
Section143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those standards and the guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial control system over financial reporting.

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
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company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(il) providereasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For: KPSJ&ASSOCIATES LLP
(Chartered Accountants)
FRN: 124845W/W100209

PRAKASHCHANDRA PARAKH
Partner

M.NO: 039946

UDIN: 25039946BMIFBE4930
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: May 30", 2025
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Annexure-I
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PRACTICES
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

A) General Information
Milton Industries Limited is a public Limited company incorporated in India under the provisions of
The Companies Act,1956 and Governed by Companies Act, 2013. The Company has its primary
listings on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (Emerge) in India.

B) Basis of preparation and presentation
a) Statement of compliance
The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the
accounting standards notified u/s. 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read together with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, accounting standards issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Accounting Convention
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis. The company prepares its
financial statement on accrual basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

¢) Operating Cycle
Based on the nature of product/activities of the company and the normal time between acquisition
ofassets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the company has determined its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-
current.

C) Significant Accounting Policies:
a) Revenue Recognition:
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated cost
can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control or managerial involvement with
the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or
duties collected on behalf of the government.

Interest income is recognized on time proportion method.

D.E.P.B. and DFRC (Balance) licenses at market rate. Export Incentives are accounted on
Entitlement basis.

Dividend Income is recognized when the unconditional right to receive the income is established.

b) Borrowing Cost:
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets
are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. Borrowing costs includes exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the interest cost.
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All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit and loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

¢) Tax Expenses:
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.

- Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

- Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period.

d) Employee Benefit:
- ShortTerm Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-termemployee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for the services rendered by employees are recognized as an expense during the period when
the employees render the services.

- Long Term Employee Benefits

Liabilities recognized in respect of other long- term employee benefits such as Gratuity, is
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by
the company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

- Post-Employment Benefits-

i) Defined Contribution Plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the
Company pays specified contributions to a separate entity. The Company makes
specified monthly contributions towards Provident Fund and Pension Scheme. The
Company's contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

ii) Defined Benefit Plans
For Defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using projected
unit credit method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at the end of each annual
reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return
on plan asset (Excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in balance sheet with a
charge or credit recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they

o — - - - e
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occur. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the
period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorized
as follows.

i) Service cost
ii) Netinterest expense or income
1i1) Re-measurement

e) Property, Plant and Equipment (Fixed Asset, Depreciation & Amortization):

Property, plant and equipment (Fixed Assets) are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade
discount and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost
includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets
to its working condition for its intended use, net changes on foreign exchange contracts and
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognize das a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is charged on pro rata basis at straight line method over estimated economic
useful lives of its property, plant and equipment generally in accordance with that provided in
the schedule II to the act.

f) Inventories:

Raw-material, Stock-in-process and Stores are valued at cost. Inventory of Finished Goods are
measured at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence, if any,
except in case of by products which are valued at net realizable value. Cost of inventories
comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including manufacturing
overheads net of recoverable taxes incurred in bringing them to their respective present
location and condition.

g) Impairment of non-financial assets-Property, Plant and Equipment (Fixed Assets):

The company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any
property, plant and equipment of group of assets, called cash generating units(CGU) may be
impaired If any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an
asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

h) Foreign currencies transaction and translation:

www.miltonindustries.com & -

" Auditor's Report W W’/ @%’ W




" MILTON

INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Y SV VY NN N | ST SN SN SN VN

Transactions in Foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency closing rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent of exchange differences which are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowing.

That are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, are capitalized
as cost of assets.

i) Cash flow statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) after tax is adjusted for
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipt
or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are
segregated based on the available information.

j) Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax by weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax as adjusted for interest and
other charges to expense or income relating to dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving earning per share.

k) Investment:

Non-CurrentInvestments are stated at cost price. Provision for diminution in the value of non-
current investment is made only if such a decline is other than temporary in the opinion of the
management.

1) Contingentliability:

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non - occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably.

e o
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MILTON INDUSTRIES LTD.
CIN: L20299GJ1985PLC008047
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2025

Note As at 31 MARCH, | As at 31 March,
No. 2025 2024

(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

A |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1|Shareholders’ funds

(a) Share capital 1 1,699.50 1,699.50
(b) Reserves and surplus 2 3,045.13 2,925.38
| | 4,744.63 4,624.88
2| Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 3 207.34 294.60
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 30 86.01 93.01
(d) Long-term provisions 4 62.90 58.16
| | 356.25 445.77
3|Current liabilities

(a) Short-term borrowings 5 1,834.36 1,227.13

(b) Trade payables 6
(i) Total Outstanding dues of Micro & 107.81 193.67

Small Enterprises
(ii) |Total Outstanding dues of Creditors 418.73 485.17
other than Micro & Small Enterprises
(c) Other current liabilities 7 78.83 222.95
(d) Short-term provisions 8 62.05 114.98
2,501.78 2,243.90
TOTAL 7,602.66 7,314.55
B |ASSETS

1|Non-current assets
(a) Property Plant & Equipment

(i) Tangible assets 9 1,139.36 1,157.64
1,139.36 1,157.64
(b) Non-current investments 10 0.44 0.44
(d) Long-term loans and advances 11 51.26 59.12
(e) Other non-current assets - -
| | 51.70 59.56
2|Current assets
(b) Inventories 12 2,777.06 2,499.03
(c) Trade receivables 13 2,053.71 2,452.18
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 14 356.94 225.40
(e) Short-term loans and advances 15 1,204.49 904.03
(f) Other current assets 16 19.39 16.72
6,411.59 6,097.36
TOTAL 7,602.66 7,314.55

The Financial Statement should be Read with conjuction of the accompanying notes

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For, KPSJ and Associates LLP Vijay Pal Jain Saket Jain
Chartered Accountants Chairman Cum CFO & Whole Time
Firm Reg. No.124845W Managing Director Director

DIN: 00343712 DIN: 02200196

Prakash M Parakh
Partner Ronak Maheshwari

. Company Secretary)
Membership No. 39946 (¢ >
UDIN : 25039946BMIFBE4930 Membership No. A60212

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May30, 2025 Date : May30, 2025
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MILTON INDUSTRIES LTD.
CIN: L20299GJ1985PLC008047

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

- Note For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars No. 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
A | CONTINUING OPERATIONS
1 | Revenue from operations (Net) 17 4,417.45 8,905.93
2 | Other income 18 175.02 24.12
3 | Total revenue (1+2) 4,592.47 8,930.05
4 | Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 19 2,781.37 6,387.05
(b) Purchases 20 198.25 190.12
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, 21 (319.80) (295.36)
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
(d) Employee benefits expense 22 538.36 535.89
(e) Finance costs 23 169.25 188.22
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 9 116.68 108.64
(g) Other expenses 24 952.95 1,386.18
Total expenses 4,437.06 8,500.74
5 | Profit / (Loss) before Tax (3 - 4) 155.41 429.31
6 | Tax expense:
(a) Current tax 46.50 115.89
(b) Income Tax for earlier years (3.84) (4.42)
(c) Deferred tax (7.01) (0.94)
35.65 110.53
7 | Profit for the period (5 + 6) 119.76 318.78
Earnings per equity share 25
(Face value of Rs.10/- each):
(a) Basic 0.70 1.88
(b) Diluted 0.70 1.88
The Financial Statement should be Read with conjuction of the accompanying notes
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For, KPSJ and Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.120693W
Vijay Pal Jain SAKET JAIN
Chairman Cum CFO & Whole Time
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00343712 DIN: 02200196
Prakash M Parakh
Partner . K Mahesh )
Membership No. 39946 (Company Secretary)
UDIN : 25039946BMIFBE4930 Membership No. A60212
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May30, 2025 Date : May30, 2025

coopoo

www.miltonindustries.com g% # Profit & Loss Account ¢

. =4 \:‘x@jrf e



* MILTON

INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Y SV VY NN N | ST SN SN SN VN

MILTON INDUSTRIES LTD.
CIN: L20299GJ1985PLC008047

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES : (Rs. In Lakhs)| (Rs. In Lakhs)
Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items 155.39 429.29
Adjustment for :
Depreciation 116.68 108.64
Interest Paid 169.26 188.23
Interest Income (149.39) (24.12)
Preliminary Expenses written off - -
(profit) / loss on sale of Assets
(profit) / loss on Impairment of Computers - -
Written off of licences - -
Net unrealised exchange (gain) / loss (6.28) -
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 285.67 702.04
Adjustment for:
Other provisions
Trade & Other Receivables 103.17 9.36
Inventories (278.03) 13.31
Trade Creditors & Other Payables (270.71) (157.55)
(347.37)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (159.91) 219.79
Income Tax Paid (116.54) 4.41
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (276.45) 524.20
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Fixed Assets (98.40) (25.66)
Sale of Fixed Assets - -
Interest income 149.39 24.12
Sale of shares - -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 50.99 (1.54)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from Borrowings (87.26) (83.73)
Working Capital Finance 607.23 (41.16)
Interest Paid (169.26) (188.23)
Issue of Share Capital
NET CASH SURPLUS IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 350.71 (313.12)
D. NET INCREASE(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 125.25 (90.45)
E. Cash and cash equivalent as at 1st April, 2023 (Opening Balance) 225.42 315.85
F. Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign 6.28 -
currency Cash and cash equivalents
G. Cash and cash equivalent as at 31st March, 2024 (Closing Balance) 356.94 225.40

The Financial Statement should be Read with conjuction of the accompanying notes

As per our report of even date attached
For, KPSJ and Associates LLP

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants ‘c,ri\jéy PaICJain z":'c‘)e;::zznl T

. alrman Cum ole me
Firm Reg. No.124845W Managing Director Director

DIN: 00343712 DIN: 02200196

Prakash M Parakh
Partner Ronak Maheshwari
Membership No. 39946 (Company Secretary)
UDIN : 25039946BMIFBE4930 Membership No. A60212
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May30, 2025 Date : May30, 2025
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MILTON INDUSTRIES LTD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SHARE CAPITAL

Rs. in Lakhs

Note PARTICULARS As at As at

No. 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Authorised

1,70,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each (See Note No. 38) 1700.00 1700.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up

1,69,95,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 1699.50 1699.50

1699.50 1699.50

la The Company is having only one class of Equity Share having a par value of Rs. 10/- Per Share. Each
Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is
subject to the approval of shareholders, except in case of interim Dividend. In the event of liquidaton,
the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaininig assets of the company, after distribution
of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.

1b The company has issued 62,50,000 Bonus Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up at par in the ratio
of 5:4 to Existing Share holder as on 14/07/2017 out of General Reserve.

1c Pursuant to Intial Public Offering (IPO) 42,00,000 equity shares of the Company of Rs.10 each were
alloted at Rs. 34 per Equity Share;

Date of Allotement | No. of Shares | Share Capital | Securities Premium Total
12th October, 2017 4,200,000 42,000,000 100,800,000.00 | 142,800,000

The equity Shares of the company were listed on National Stock Exchange-SME Platform with effect
from October 16, 2017.

1d The company has issued 15,45,000 Bonus Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up at par in the ratio
of 1:10 to Existing Share holder as on 15/10/2019 out of Security Premium Account

le Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Balance at the beginning Changes in equity share Capital Balance at the end of
of the reporting period during the year the reporting period
1,69,95,000 Equity Shares — 1,69,95,000 Equity Shares

www.miltonindustries.com & -
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1f Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company.

Name of the Shareholder As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding

1 Sulochana Vijaipal Jain 1,194,528 7.03 1,194,528 7.03
2 Vikas Vijaipal Jain 1,145,118 6.74 1,145,118 6.74
3 Babita Ajay Jain 1,219,041 7.17 12,19,041 7.17
4 Dayawati Mahiplasingh Jain 895,459 5.27 895,459 5.27
5 Vijay Pal Jain 8,89,138 5.29 8,89,138 5.29
6 Ajay Mahipalsingh Jain 889,242 5.23 889,242 5.23
Shareholding of Promoters 31st March 2025
% Change during
Promoter name No. of Shares | % of total shares
the year
Vikas Jain 1,145,118 6.74 -
Vijay Pal Jain 8,99,138 5.29 -
Ajay Mahipal Singh Jain 889,242 523 -
Abhaykumar Mahipalsingh Jain 818,158 4.81 -
Saket Jain 512,025 3.01 -
42,63,681 25.09 -
31st March 2024
% Ch duri
Promoter name No. of Shares % of total shares o halige Curing
the year
Vikas Jain 1,145,118 6.74 -
Vijay Pal Jain 899,138 5.29 -
Ajay Mahipal Singh Jain 889,242 5.23 -
Abhaykumar Mahipalsingh Jain 818,158 4.81 -
Saket Jain 512,025 3.01 -
TOTAL 4,263,681 25.09
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2 RESERVES AND SURPLUS Rs. in Lakhs
PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
(a) SECURITY PREMIUM
As per last Balance Sheet 853.50 853.50
Add : Amount Capitalised by

Issue of Bonus Shares .00
853.50 853.50
(b) GENERAL RESERVE

As per last Balance Sheet 60.52 60.52
Add : Transfer from Capital Reserve — —
Add : Transfer from Profit & Loss Account

Less : Bonus Share issue — —
60.52 60.52

(c) SURPLUS
As per last Balance Sheet 2011.36 — 1692.59

Add : Profit for the year 119.75 318.77

2131.11 2011.36
3045.13 2925.38

3 LONG TERM BORROWINGS
PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

(a) TERM LOAN
a. From Banks (Refer note 7)
Secured-Car loans 25.50 24.53
(Secured by way of Hypothecation of Cars)
Repayable in 60 monthly Installments
1. Commencing From June-2019 to May-2024.
2. Commencing From Dec-2018 to Dec-2023.
2. Commencing From Nov-2020 to Oct-2024.

2. Commencing From Mar-2021 to Dec-2025.

b. Other Secured Term loans
Emergency Credit Line Given By SBI (ECL) - -

Govt. Emergency Credit Line (GECL) 42.10 89.60

(b) Loans and advances
Unsecured (from related parties) 139.74 180.47
207.34 294.60

"~ Notes To The Financial Statements www.miltonindustries.com &~
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4 LONG TERM PROVISIONS Rs. in Lakhs
PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Provision For Employee Benefits 62.90 58.16

62.90 58.16

5 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
PARTICULARS

Working Capital Loans from Banks

Secured loans from State Bank of India and HDFC Bank Ltd.
(Secured by hypothecation of present and future current assets
Plant & Machinery of the company; equitable mortgage of company's
Immovable properties at Village Rajpur Taluka-Kadi and Prantij
Dist-Sabarkantha and on personal guarantee of the Directors)

Secured loans from DBS Bank Ltd.

(Secured by hypothecation of present and future current
assets Plant & Machinery of the company)

Current maturities of long-term debt

As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

521.62 605.09

1254.77 585.42

57.97 36.62

1834.36 1227.13

6 TRADE PAYABLES

PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

e

.
www.miltonindustries.com g%

Due to Micro and small enterprises 107.81 193.67
Others 418.73 485.17
Creditors for Expenses - -
526.54 678.84
AS AT 31 MARCH 2025
Particulars Less than 1 year | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME 104.31 1.83 1.57 0.10 107.81
(ii) Others 370.88 12.34 4,65 30.86 418.73
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - -
TOTAL 475.19 14.17 6.22 30.96 526.54
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024
Particulars Less than 1 year | 1-2years | 2-3years | Morethan3years | Total
(i) MSME 193.67 193.67
(ii) Others 339.29 23.16 8.07 114,64 485.17
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others
TOTAL 532.97 23.16 8.07 114.64 678.84
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7  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Rs. in Lakhs

PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

Interest Accrued but not due on borrowing
Advances from customers
Other Payables*

27.47
51.36

78.83

*Includes Statutory Dues, Credit Balances of Customers & Unpaid Expenses.

8  SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

112.75
110.20

222.95

PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Provision for Income tax (Net of Advance Tax) 10.65 91.54
Provision for Employee Benefits 51.40 23.44
62.05 114.98
10 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS (QUOTED - AT COST)
PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Non-Trade Investments
2200 (2200) Equity shares of Gujarat state financial coporation Ltd. A4 0.44
(Fully Paid up of Rs. 10/- each)
44 .44
Market Value of Quoted Investment
2200 (2200) Equity share of Gujarat State Financial 0.31 0.57
Corporation Ltd.
11 LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured and Considered Good)
PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Security Deposits 51.26 59.12
51.26 59.12
12 INVENTORIES
PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Raw materials 961.76 1026.53
Stores and spares 25.92 2.92
Finished goods 1,426.54 1305.79
Work-in-progress 362.84 161.79
2,777.06 2499.03

13 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Unsecured
Considered Good 2,050.44 2,427.94
Considered Doubtful 3.27 24.23
Less: Provision for Doubtful Trade Receivables - -
2,053.71 2,452.18
Others (Considered Good) - -
Secured TOTAL UNSECURED (A) 2,053.71 2,452.18
Considered Good - -
Considered Doubtful - -
Less: Provision for Doubtful Trade Receivables - -
TOTAL SECURED (B) - -
TOTAL(A+B) 2,053.71 2,452.18

~ " Notes To The Financial Statements
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Note:13.1 As at 31st March 2025
PARTICULARS lessthan6 |6months- | | s | 23years |Morethan3 Total
months 1 year years
) el rage receivables - 625.95 | 56.11 | 156.54 54.26 - 1,943.59
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — _ _ _
considered doubtful 0.11 3.16 3.27
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables _
considered good B - - 7.44 106.85
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables _ _ - - _ -
considered doubtful
TOTAL BILLED AND DUE (A) 625.95 56.11 156.65 64.87 - 2,053.71
UNBILLED DUES (B) - - - - - -
TOTAL TRADE RECEIVABLES (A + B) 625.95 56.11 156.65 64.87 - 2,053.71
As at 31st March 2024
PARTICULARS lessthan6 |6months- |\, rs | 23years |Morethan3 Total
months 1 year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - 981.68 68.98 | 335.80 332.49 62062 | 2,339.58
considered good
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — B ) ) )
considered doubtful 24.23 24.23
(iii) I?lsputed Trade Receivables _ B _ 16.21 72.15 88.37
considered good
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables _ _ _ _ _ _
considered doubtful
TOTAL BILLED AND DUE (A) 981.68 68.98 335.80 348.70 717.01 2,452.18
UNBILLED DUES (B) - - - - - -
TOTAL TRADE RECEIVABLES (A + B) 981.68 68.98 335.80 348.70 717.01 2,452.18

14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

Balances with Banks

In Current Accounts 2.29 0.18
Other Bank Balances 27.85 28.19
In EEFC Accounts 0.36 0.35
Held as Margin Money and security 287.80 158.91
318.30 187.63
Cash on Hand 38.64 37.77
356.94 225.40

15 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured and Considered Good)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

(a) Balance with GST, Vat, Service Tax, Customs 97.53 118.25
& Central Excise Authorities
(b) Other Short Term loans & Advances 1,106.96 785.78
"(Includes Advances to supplier & employees, Prepaid
expenses, Short Term Capital Advances & Other short
Term advances and deposites)"
1,204.49 904.03

Financial Statements .
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16 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS Rs. in Lakhs
PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Accured Interest 19.39 16.72

1939 1672

17 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Sale of Products 4,403.44 8899.16
Other Operating Revenue 14.01 6.77
41745 _ 8905.93
Sale of Products comprises:
Laminated Sheets & Paper 384.89 641.70
Coated Fabrics/Fabrics 768.04 1179.76
GFRE Sheets 3,250.51 7077.70
Total Sale of Products m m

Other Operating Revenue

Duty Drawback 14.01 4.71
VAT & GST Subsidy Income 2.06
14.01 6.77

18 OTHER INCOME
PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Interest Income 149.39 24.12

Misc. Income -
Foreign Exchange Variation Gain (Net) 19.35 -
Income Tax Excess provision A.Y 19-20 Written Back 6.28 -

Profit on sale of car -

175.02 24.12
19 COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED

PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Opening stock 1,026.53 1164.34
Add : Purchase during the Year 2,914.84 6439.36
Less : Closing Stock 961.76 1026.53
2,979.61 6577.17

Less : Transfers to Purchases 198.25 190.12
2,781.37 6387.05

~ " Notes To The Financial Statements www.miltonindustries.com &~
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" MILTON

INDUSTRIES LIMITED

20 PURCHASE
PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Purchase 198.25 190.12
198.25 190.12
Rs. in Lakhs
21 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

22

Opening Stock
Finished goods
Work-in-progress

Trading Goods

Closing Stock
Finished goods

Work-in-progress

Trading Goods

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

1305.79

163.79
1469.58

1426.54

362.84
- 1789.38
(319.80)

941.69
232.54
1174.22
1305.79
163.79
- 1469.58
(295.36)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

23

Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to Provident Fund
Gratuity Expenses

Staff and Labour Welfare Expenses

FINANCE COST

494.09
17.48
6.64
20.15

538.36

348.08
17.36
11.30

159.15

535.89

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

www.miltonindustries.com g%

Interest Expenses on
Borrowings
Others

Other Borrowing Cost-Bank Charges

/WJV@WW

151.24
8.44
9.57

169.25

181.68

6.55

__ 18823
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24 OTHER EXPENSES Rs. in Lakhs
PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Stores & Spares consumed 30.77 138.24
Consumption of Packing Material 84.02 56.41
Manufacturing Expenses 0.72 55.20
Power & Fuel Expenses 174.28 165.64
Jobwork & Design Printing Expenses 174.42 297.38
Labour Charges 39.11 43.05
Repairs & Maintenance

Vehicle 15.41
Building 1.06 4.55
Plant & machinery 20.96 4.66
Others 6.57 6.18
28.59 30.80
Insurance Expenses 9.52 12.15
Bad Debts written off - -
Rates & Taxes 0.93 -
Freight & Forwarding Charges 122.98 286.70
Sales & Distribution Expenses 102.48 108.46
Rent Expense 29.78 22.91
Payment To Auditors
As Audit Fees 3.40 3.21
For other Matters - 0.70
Security Expense 8.22 12.44
Miscellaneous Expenses 142.27 143.02
Foreign Exchange Variation Loss (Net) 0.17
Donation Expenses 1.46 9.70
952.95 1386.18

25

BASIC & DILUTED EPS

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

"~ Notes To The Financial Statements

Basic Earning Per Share
(a) Profit Attributable to the Shareholders

(b) Weighted average number of equity shares
Outstanding during the year

(c) Nominal Value of Equity Shares
(d) Basic Earning Per share
(FV. Rs. 10/- per share)

Diluted Earning Per Share
(a) Profit Attributable to the Shareholders

(b) Weighted average number of equity shares
Outstanding during the year

(c) Nominal Value of Equity Shares
(d) Basic Earning Per share

(FV. Rs. 10/- per share)

/\:@/}VW

119.76
169.95

10.00
0.70

119.76
169.95

10.00
0.70

318.77
169.95

10.00
1.88

318.77
169.95

10.00

1.88

www.miltonindustries.com & -
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26 VALUE OF IMPORTS ON C.I.F. BASIS Rs. in Lakhs
PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Raw Material & Chemicals 138.90 341.92

138.90 341.92

27 EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

Bank Charges

for Import of Goods

28 EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

138.90
138.90

342.86
342.86

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

Exports of Goods on F.O.B. Basis
(In Foreign Currency)

Exports of Goods on F.O.B. basis
(in Indian Currency)

(inUSD) 0.71
(in GBP) 1.07
173.77

173.77

29 DETAILS OF CONSUMPTION OF IMPORTED AND INDIGENOUS GOODS

(in USD) 2.54
(in GBP) 0.82
365.59

365.59

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

Raw Material (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs) %  (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs) %
Imported Goods 138.90 4.99 341.92 5.20
Indigenous Goods 2,642.46 95.01 6235.25 94.80
2,781.37 100.00 6577.17 100.00

Stores & Spare parts (Amount in Rs.) % (Amount in Rs.) %
Imported Goods - - .00 -
Indigenous Goods 30.77 100.00 138.24 100.00
30.77 100.00 138.24 100.00

30 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March 2025

e -
www.miltonindustries.com g%

As at 31st March 2024

Opening Balance of Deferred Tax Liability
Deferred Tax Liability\(Assets) for the year

93.02
(7.01)

"Closing Balance of Deferred Tax Liability on Account of Difference

between book balance & Tax balance of Fixed Assets"

86.01

93.96
(0.94)

93.02

31 DISCLOSURE REQUIRED UNDER THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

(a) Unpaid Principal & Interest thereon

(b) Delayed Payment Due

(c) Interest paid on delayed payment under the MSMED Act

(d) Interest due on principal amounts paid beyond the due
date during the year

(e) Interest accrued but not due

(f) Total Interest due but not paid

107.81

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

193.67
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified
on the basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

/WJ’WIW To The
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32

(a)

* MILTON

INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Disclosures as required by Accounting Standard (AS) - 15 (Revised 2005) "Employee Benefits" issued by the Institute

of Chartered Accountants of India are given below:
Defined Benefit Plan-Gratuity

The amounts recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss account are as follows:

Rs. in Lakhs

PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

(b)

CurrentService cost 4.32
Interest cost on benefit obligation 3.98
Expectedreturn on plan assets -
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized during the year (1.65)
Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 6.64

The amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

11.30

(0.41)
10.89

PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

(c)

Present value of funded obligation

Present value of non-funded obligation 62.90
Total obligation 62.90
Less: Fair value of Plan assets

Net (asset)/liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 62.90

58.16
58.16

58.16

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of the opening and closing

balance there of are as follows:

PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

(d)

Opening defined benefit obligation 58.16
Interest cost 3.98
Current Service cost 4.32
Benefits Paid (1.90)
Actuarial (gains)/loss on obligation (1.65)
Closing defined benefit obligation 62.90

Experience Adjustments

48.80

11.30
(1.53)
(0.41)

58.16

PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

(e)

Present value of DBO 62.90
Fair value of plan assets -
Funded status [Surplus / (Deficit)] 62.90
Experience (gain) / loss adjustments on plan liabilities (1.65)

Experience (gain) / loss adjustments on plan Assets -

The principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows:

58.16

58.16
(0.41)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

~ Notes To The Financial Statements

Discount rate 0.072
Expected rate of return on plan assets -
Mortality table Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14) Urban
Salary escalation 0.05

Attrition rate 0.02

0.075

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14) Urban
0.05

0.02

(The estimates of future salary increase considered in acturial valuation takes account of inflation, seniority, Promotion

and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market)

(The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance Sheet

date for the estimated term of the obligations).
1. Method of Valuation: Projected Unit Credit Method

2. The cost related to gratuity is based on an actuarial valuation, the actuarial valuation was made at the end of

the year.

“d \i@/‘}f e

www.miltonindustries.com _#



" MILTON

INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Y SV VY NN N | ST SN SN SN VN

33 The disclosure requirement as per Accounting Standard 17 "Segment Reporting" is:

Sr. |Particulars For the Half Year Ended For the Year Ended

no 3/31/2025 9/30/2024| 3/31/2024 3/31/2025 3/31/2024

1 | Segment Revenue (Net of GST)
Laminate 201.27 183.62 210.30 384.89 641.70
Division
Rexine 258.86 509.17 642.12 768.04 1179.76
Division
GFRE 1,717.70 1,532.81 3,938.31 3250.51 7077.70
Division
Total 2,177.84 2,225.60 4,790.73 4,403.44 8,899.16
Less : Intersegment Revenue
Net Sales/Income from Operations 2,177.84 2,225.60 4,790.73 4,403.44 8,899.16

2_| Segment Results
Profit/Loss before tax & interest

Laminate (75.42) (53.43) 8.62 (128.85) (25.62)

Division

Rexine 126.81 95.64 16.16 222.45 10.22

Division

GFRE 325.10 287.21 496.32 612.31 902.40

Division

Total 376.48 329.43 521.11 705.91 887.01

Less

Interest 82.82 81.05 95.32 163.87 181.67

Other Un-allocable Expenditure 202.31 197.28 91.30 399.58 300.17

Add : Unallocable : Interest Income 12.94 - 22.14 12.94 24.12

Add : Unallocable : Other Income - -1.92 0.00 0.00

Total Profit before Tax 104.29 51.10 354.73 155.39 429.31

Current Tax 46.50 - 115.89 46.50 115.89

Income Tax of Earlier Years - (3.84) (4.42) (3.84) (4.42)

Deferred Tax (7.01) - (0.94) (7.01) (0.94)

Net Profit after Tax 64.81 54.94 244.20 119.75 318.78
3 | Segment Assets

Laminate (1,294.00) 1,439.93 1,452.10 (1,294.00) 1452.10

Division

Rexine 2,708.03 878.33 1,223.56 2708.03 1223.56

Division

GFRE 12,277.50 3,659.38 3,526.79 12277.50 3526.79

Division

Unallocated (6,088.87) 1064.67 1112.10 (6,088.87) 1112.10

Total Assets 7,602.66 7,042.31 7,314.55 7602.66 7,314.55
4 | Segment Liabilities

Laminate 50.14 89.00 248.08 50.14 248.08

Division

Rexine 1826.63 1751.53 299.70 1826.63 299.70

Division

GFRE 8201.98 7375.09 766.46 8201.98 766.46

Division

Unallocated (2,476.09) (2,173.32) 6000.31 (2,476.09) 6000.31

Total Liabilities 7602.66 7042.31 7,314.55 7602.66 7,314.55
5 | Capital Expenditure

Laminate - - 0.79 4.35

Division

Rexine 0.29 12.67 1.81 12.96 5.75

Division

GFRE 14.25 30.46 13.44 44.71 13.84

Division

Unallocated 40.73 - 40.73 1.77

Note:
1 Geographical segment considered for disclosure are as follows:

Revenue within India includes sales to customers located within India.
Revenue outside India includes sales to customers located outside India.

www.miltonindustries.com g® Notes To The Financial Statements #
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) List of Related parties and their relationship

Sr. No. [Name of the Related parties Relationship
1 Neha Vinit Jain Key Management Personnel
2 |Vijaipal B.Jain Key Management Personnel
3 Ajay M. Jain Key Management Personnel
4 Vikas Jain Key Management Personnel
5 Abhay M. Jain Key Management Personnel
6 Saket Jain Key Management Personnel
7 CS Ronak Maheshwari Key Management Personnel
8 Milton Exports India Pvt. Ltd. Sister concern
9 Heritage Décor Ltd. Sister concern
10 |Archana Fab Pvt Ltd. Sister concern
11  |Milton Exports Associate Concern
12 |Bhagmal Birbal Jain Associate Concern
13 |Gurjimal Ulfatrai Jain Associate Concern
14  |Dharampal A.Jain Associate Concern
15 |Haranamdas Trading Co. Associate Concern
16 |Saket Jain - Huf Karta is Key Management Personnel
17  |Abhaybhai Jain - Huf Karta is Key Management Personnel
18 |Ajay M. Jain - Huf Karta is Key Management Personnel
19 |Vijaipal Jain - H.U.F. Karta is Key Management Personnel
20 [Vikas Jain Huf Karta is Key Management Personnel
21  [Smt.Gargi Jain Relatives of Key Management Personnel
22 [Smt.Sulochana Jain Relatives of Key Management Personnel
23 |Abha Jain Relatives of Key Management Personnel
24 [Manav Jain Relatives of Key Management Personnel
25  [Bhaumik Jain Relatives of Key Management Personnel
26  |Archana Jain Relatives of Key Management Personnel
27  [Babita Jain Relatives of Key Management Personnel
28 |Dayawati Jain Relatives of Key Management Personnel
29 [Himanshu Jain Relatives of Key Management Personnel
30 |Niketa Jain Relatives of Key Management Personnel
31 [Nisha Jain Relatives of Key Management Personnel
32 |Priti Jain Relatives of Key Management Personnel
33 [Prerit Kumar Jain Relatives of Key Management Personnel
34 |Suneet Jain Relatives of Key Management Personnel
35 [Vinit Jain Relatives of Key Management Personnel
36 |Dharampal Jain Huf Karta is Relatives of Key Management Personnel
37 [Mahipal Singh Jain (Huf) (M) Karta is Relatives of Key Management Personnel
38 |Mass Transit Equipment India LLP Related Party

Notes To The Financial Statements
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(b) Transactions with the Related Parties CY (In lakhs Rs.)
PY (In lakhs Rs.)
Entity owned or .
Nature of Transactions Key Management | significantly influenced Relative of Key
Sr. No. . . Managemnet
(Excluding Reimbursement) Personnel by Key Management ersonnel
personel or their relative P
| Design Printing Charges 5.60
5.63
) Rent Expense 17.50
12.00
] Purchase of Goods 758.78
469.00
s Purchase of Capital Goods
: Sale of Goods 405.46
331.30
6 Interest Income
; Interest Expenses 1.18 0.15 8.77
1.09 0.23 10.77
g Salary Paid 3.88 21.60
6.29 21.60
Remuneration Paid(including 120.00 -
9 proffesional expenses)
10 Loan Repaid 120.00 10.00
14.42 1.28 35.88
i Fixed Deposit / Loan Received 4.70 0.16 306.25
1.20
0 Advance against Salary -
3 Loans and Advances given - 1.48 39.28
5.75 0.39 310.90
" Receivables at the end of the year - 3.14 115.18
13.27 1.21 92.40
s Payables at the end of the year 4.70 7.15 126.00
20.38 12.28 159.89

Financial Statements g2, F

s = - - .
= www.miltonindustries.com g%

g Wj \i@/frj W Notes To The



* MILTON

INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Y SV VY NN N | ST SN SN SN VN

35 Contingent Liability & Commitments

2024-25 2023-24
Amount in lacs Amount in lacs

Contingent Liabilities in respect of
a. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts: 55.97 56.15
Income Tax Demand

b. Letters of Credit opened and guarantee given by the bank 0.00 0.00
in favour of parties and govt. authorities

c. Buyers Credit 0.00 0.00

55.97 56.15

Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed 0.00 0.00
on capital account and not provided for (Net of Advances)

0.00 0.00

36 NOTESFORMING PARTOFTHEACCOUNTSFORTHEYEARENDED ON
31stMARCH 2025

1  The Company changed its name on 03.04.2007 from M/s. Milton Laminates Ltd. to
M/s Milton Industries Ltd.

2 1) Valley Velvette Pvt. Ltd. (VVPL) engaged in the business of manufacturing Coated
Fabrics cloth is amalgamated with the Company with effect from April 1,2008 in terms of
Amalgamation (Scheme)sanctioned by the Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat vide its order
dated 28/08/2009. The said Scheme came into effect from 25/09/2009 being effective
date and pursuant thereto all assets, estates, title, interests, authorities, debts, out
standings, credits, liabilities have been transferred to and vested in the Company
retrospectively with effect from the appointed datei.e. April 1,2008.

i1) Each shareholder of Transferor Company received three (3) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
(Rupees Ten each only) fully paid up in the capital of Transferee Company for every one
(1) equity share/s of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up and held in the capital of transferor
company. All shares issued and allotted ranked pari passu in all respects with the existing
equity shares in the transferee company.

3 The Company will make necessary adjustments onreceipt of balance confirmations from the
parties who have yetto send their confirmations.

4  Depreciation for the year has been provided on carrying cost at the rates and manner
prescribed in Schedule [T of the Companies Act,2013 on Straight Line Method.

- Depreciation onoriginal costofassets is charged to the Profit & Loss Alc.

e v
#” www.miltonindustries.com ¢

~ Notes To The Financial Statements

“d \i@/‘;’rf e



" MILTON

INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Y SV VY NN N | ST SN SN SN VN

37 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the
financial year and comparative period.

38 The Company has not entered into any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of
the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

39 As at the reporting dates, none of the charges or satisfaction of charges are yet to be registered with
ROC beyond the statutory time limit.

40 The provisions relating to number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the
Companies Act. 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017 are not
applicable to the company.

41 The company does not have any scheme of Arrangements approved by the competent Authority in
terms of Section 230 to 237 of Companies Act, 2013.

42  The Company does not hold any Benami Properties. No proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and the rules made thereunder.

43 There are no transactions that has not been recorded in the books of accounts and has been

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961.

44 GST Payable and Receivable booked on the basis of CGST, SGST and IGST act and all working done
as per respective act and also follow the requirement of the act. GST Balance is Subject to the
reconcilation of Annual GST Return.

45 Balances of Trade Payables and Trade Receivables are subject to confirmation, reconciliations and
adjustment, ifany.

46 RatioAnalysis.
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Sr 31st 31st %%
No. Ratio Numerator Denominator March | March Variaonce Reason for variance
) 2025 2024
Current Current
1 ratio Current Assets Liabilities 2.56 2.72 -5.69 NA
Debt equity Shareholder’s
2 ratio Total Debt Equity 0.43 0.33 30.78 NA
Net Profit before taxes
+ Non-cash operating
Debt expens_es'llke Interest & Lease
service depreciation and other Payments +
3 amortizations + ym 0.20 0.42 -53.00 NA
coverage Principal
ratio Interest + other Repayments
adjustments like loss pay
on sale of Fixed assets
etc
Return on Net Profits after taxes | Average
4 Equity (in - Preference Dividend | Shareholder’s 0.03 0.07 -64.19 NA
%) (if any) Equity
The major reason for the
variance in this ratio is

Average R )
due to increase in sales

Inventory Inventory in current financial year
> t:;ir;over Net sales E:?oi?r?mga-rance / 1.67 3.68 -54.49 as compared to previous
9 financial year and the

2) .
company has efficient
inventory management
The reason for the

Average variance |n_t_h|s ratio is
due to significance

Trader Credit Sal Accounts ) . |
receivable Net Credit >ales Receivable increase in net sales

6 t (gross credit sales ; 1.96 3.49 -43.85 against the average
urnover minus sales return) (Opening + trade receivables
ratio Closing balance / -

2) incurrent year as
compared to the
previous year

Trade Net Credit Purchases Average Mainly due to increase in
7 payable (gross credit ﬁ;cgﬁ{:(so enin 517 7.83 34.03 purchase and higher
turnover purchases minus + Z:Iosing P 9 : : : average of account
ratio purchase return ) balance / 2) payables
This shows positive
Net capital ; effect as the company is
8 turnover Ne_t Sales (total sales Average Working 1.14 2.43 -53.10 efficient to make
. minus sales returns) Capital )
ratio generate sales using
average working capital
Net profit )
9 ratio (in %) Net Profit Net Sales 2.71 3.58 -24.27 NA
Return on Caplta_l Employed
capital Earning before interest (Tangible Net
10 P 9 Worth + Total 472 | 9.90 | -52.27
employed and taxes b f d
(in %) De t+ [}g erre
Tax Liability) NA

Note- The Numerator and Denominator description given below is based on standard format only for understanding purpose. This need to

beamended by each company based on specific items with reference tonomenclature used in its financial statement.

47 Previousyear figures have beenreclassified where necessary to confirm to this year's classification.

48 Significant accounting policies and practices adopted by the Company are disclosed in the statement
annexed to these financial statement as Annexure L.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For, KPSJ and Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.124845W

Saket Jain
(WTD & CFO)

Vijay Pal Jain
Chairman Cum
Managing Director

Prakash M Parakh

Partner

Membership No. 39946

UDIN : 25039946BMIFBE4930

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May30, 2025

AJAY MAHIPAL SINGH JAIN
(Director)

Ronak Maheshwari
(Company Secretary)
Membership No. A60212

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May30, 2025

/\i@/ivw
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MILTON INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CIN: L20299GJ1985PLC008047

Registered Office: /2, Chitra- Ami Appartment, Opp. La-Gajjar Chamber, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat 380009 India.

Contact No.: - 079-26584193 E mail: cs@miltonindustries.in ~ Website : www.miltonindustries.in

PROXY FORM MGT-11

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the member(s)
Registered address
E-mail ID

Folio No/Client ID
DPID

I/We, being the member(s) of .......c.cccveverrerererennen, Shares of the Milton Industries Limited, hereby appoint:

L NI e AdAress: ..o
E-mail ID: .o,

SIZNALUTE ...t , or failing him.

TP AdAress: ..o
E-mail ID: .o

SIZNATUTE ...ttt b e sb b seenns , or failing him.

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 39" Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held on the Tuesday, 30" September, 2025 at 03:00 P.M. at %, Chitra-
AmiAppartment, Opp. La-Gajjar Chamber, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat- 380009 India

Ordinary Business

1. To consider and adopt Audited Financial Statement, Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
2. Re-appointment of Mr. Vijay Pal Jain who retires by rotation
3. Re-appointment of Mr. Vikas Jain who retires by rotation

Signature of Shareholder

Signed this day of 2025

Signature of first Proxy holder Signature of second Proxy holder Signature of third Proxy holder

. [ ) X ] Cocpocor i m = e e
/W% .~ A/cPolicies & Note Financial Statements2. "7 <

. - - - o
www.miltonindustries.com g% =




* MILTON

INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Y SV VY NN N | ST SN SN SN VN

Notes:

1. This of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the registered office
of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company and shall prove his identity at the time of attending
the meeting.

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate
not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member
holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint
a single person as proxy and such person shall not actas a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

4. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the Meeting in person if he / she so
wishes. When a Member appoints a proxy and both the member and proxy attend the meeting, the
proxy will stand automatically revoked.

5. In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint
holders should be stated.

6. This form of proxy shall be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly authorized in writing, or if
the appointer is a body corporate, bounder its seal or be signed by an officer or an attorney duly
authorized by it.

7. This form of proxy will be valid only if it is duly complete in all respects, properly stamped and
submitted as per the applicable law. Incomplete form or form which remains unstamped or
inadequately stamped or form upon which the stamps have not been cancelled will be treated as
invalid.

8. Undated proxy form will not be considered valid.
9. If Company receives multiple proxies for the same holdings of a member, the proxy which is dated

last will be considered valid; if they are not dated or bear the same date without specific mention of
time, all such multiple proxies will be treated as invalid.

“=""A/c Policies & Note Financial Statement & F



" MILTON

INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Y SV VY NN N | ST SN SN SN VN

MILTON INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L20299GJ1985PLC008047

Registered Office: '5, Chitra- Ami Appartment,
Opp. La-Gajjar Chamber, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat- 3800009.

Website: www.miltonindustries.in ~ Contact No.:- 079-26584193 Email: cs@miltonindustries.in

ATTENDANCE SLIP

th

39" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on the on Tuesday, 30th, September, 2025 at
03:00 P.M. at : /3, Chitra- Ami Apartment, Opp. La-Gajjar Chamber, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-
380009. Through E- Meeting

Regd. Folio No. DP ID

Client ID/Ben. A/C No. of shares held

I certify that [ am a registered sharcholder/proxy for the registered Shareholder of the Company and hereby
record my presence at the 39" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, 30"
September, 2025 at 03:00 P.M. at '4, Chitra- Ami Appartment, Opp. La-Gajjar Chamber, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat- 380009. India

Member’s/Proxy’s name in Block Letters Member’s/Proxy’s Signature

NOTES:-

1. If it is intended to appoint a proxy, the Form should be completed and deposited at the registered
office of the Company at least 48 hours before the Meeting.

2. Shareholders/proxy holders are requested to bring the attendance slips with them when they come to
Meeting and handover at the entrance after affixing their signature on them.

3. Shareholders are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report along with them to the Annual
General Meeting, as copies of the Report will not be distributed again at the Meeting.

4. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he wishes.

“SEA/c Policies & Note Financial Statement 2. ' 4
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ANNEXURE F
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the com-
pany with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not on an arm’s length basis:

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship;

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions;

c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions;

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any;

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions;

f) Date(s) of approval by the Board;

g) Amount paid as advances, if any; and

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under
first proviso to section 188.

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions on an arm’s length basis:

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship;

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions;

c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions;

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any;
e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any; and

f) Amount paid as advances, if any

(
(
(
(
(
(

e

A/c Policies & Note Financial Statement o &



* MILTON

INDUSTRIES LIMIT

— - - -
www.miltonindustries.co




" MILTON

INDUSTRIES LIMITED

1/2, Chitra Ami Apartment, Opp. Old RBI, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad - 380009. India.
Phone : +91-79-26584193, 26588448
Email : milton@miltonindustries.in | info@miltonindustries.in
CIN : L20299GJ1985PLC008047
Website : www.miltonindustries.in
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